
Scotland County Board of Commissioners retreat 
February 26, 2014, SBIC, US401 bypass north, Laurinburg 
 

1 
 

MINUTES 
Scotland County Board of Commissioners 

February 26, 2014 Mid-Year Retreat/Reconvened Meeting 
Small Business Innovation Center, US 401 North 

 
At 8 a.m. Chairman Guy McCook reconvened the meeting for a mid-year retreat.  
Commissioners in attendance:  Chairman McCook, Vice Chair Carol McCall and Commissioners 
John Alford, Bob Davis and Whit Gibson.  Commissioners not in attendance:  Commissioners 
John Cooley and Clarence McPhatter.  Staff in attendance:  County Manager Kevin Patterson, 
Deputy Finance Officer Beth Hobbs, County Attorney Ed Johnston and Clerk to the Board Ann 
W. Kurtzman.  Commissioner Davis opened the meeting with a prayer. 
 
Wagram Recreation Center program modifications report 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Shannon Newton requested approval of the concept to add 
services for older adults at the Wagram Recreation Center using existing staff and at no cost to 
the County.  The plan also would not affect current programs.  Ms. Newton said about $5,000 in 
outside funding would be made available with an in-kind match. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Gibson and duly seconded by Commissioner Alford to 
approve the concept of adding senior programs to the Wagram Recreation Center 
schedule.  Vote:  Motion unanimously approved. 
   
Executive summary audit report 
 
Deputy Finance Officer Beth Hobbs presented highlights of the executive summary of the audit 
report.  She said there is an $8.1 million combined fund balance, which is a $792,000 increase 
over the previous year, which leaves a 13.94 percent available fund balance.  
 
Chairman McCook asked staff to look at general fund percentages so targets could be 
established as to where the County wants to be.  Staff might look at what other counties are 
doing.   
 
Chairman McCook said there are benefits and value to having a higher Fund Balance, 
particularly when it comes to recruiting industry.  Chairman McCook said Fund Balance should 
be a topic for the next meeting in order to discuss a minimum, target and maximum and to 
establish a timeline. 
 
Current FY 14 revenues and expenditures 
 
Ms. Hobbs provided an update on revenues and property taxes collected to date as well as 
current expenditures.  She said the figures do not include all of February.  She said the County 
might be a little under in collected revenues, but the County is still in a good position in total 
projections.   
 



Scotland County Board of Commissioners retreat 
February 26, 2014, SBIC, US401 bypass north, Laurinburg 
 

2 
 

Chairman McCook asked staff to provide the Commissioners with projections sometime in 
March of where the County will be on the revenue side in sales and property tax. 
 
Chairman McCook asked staff to present sales tax collections in a different format, such as a 
graph, for comparison purposes. 
 
EOC/911 Center update 
 
County Manager Patterson reviewed a draft Memorandum of Understanding between the County 
and the City of Laurinburg on the Consolidated 911 Call Center.  A job description for the 911 
call center director is being developed.  Mr. Patterson said the committee currently developing 
the Memorandum of Understanding, job description and documents related to the operation of 
the center consists of the County Manager, Sheriff, EMS Director, the City Manager, Police 
Chief and Fire Chief.   
 
Mr. Patterson described the staffing at the center.  There would be no staff reduction.  He said 
the building would be completed in September.  The end of the calendar year is when the center 
is expected to be fully operational. 
 
Operational costs, equipment and training will be borne by the County.  Personnel costs will be 
shared with the City contributing one-third of the total.   
 
Chairman McCook said the backup communication system should be addressed at some point.  
 
Mr. Patterson said a draft Memorandum of Understanding should be ready for review at a joint 
meeting of the City and County in March with adoption at the respective meetings of the 
governing boards in April. 
 
(A break was called.  The meeting resumed at 9:55 a.m.) 
 
Litter crew proposal 
 
Mr. Patterson discussed the possibility of the formation of a six-man litter crew, which would 
consist of one full-time supervisor and inmate workers.  Estimated cost would be $40,000.  A 
van and small trailer would be used.  Vice Chair McCall suggested a grant might be available for 
the initial start up. 
 
Fire Commission fire tax proposal 
 
Volunteer Fire Chief Neil Shaw asked the Commissioners to consider increasing the fire tax in 
unincorporated areas from two cents to five cents.  Mr. Shaw said the fire tax has remained at 
two cents for the past 16 years.  Mr. Shaw distributed a 20-year plan developed by the Fire 
Commission, which addresses equipment replacement.  He said the goal of the plan would be to 
reduce the fire rating in the County, which ranges from the lowest of five to the highest of 10.  
Mr. Shaw said the higher the rating, the costlier the premiums.  Mr. Shaw said new equipment 
has a higher water capacity, which is desirable for a lower ISO rating.   



Scotland County Board of Commissioners retreat 
February 26, 2014, SBIC, US401 bypass north, Laurinburg 
 

3 
 

 
Mr. Shaw said the increased tax would be used in the first year to establish an unmanned, heated 
fire sub-station with a pumper and tanker in the southern part of the County.  In the second year, 
another sub-station with the same features and equipment would be established in the western 
part of the County.   
 
Mr. Shaw said the oldest vehicle is 18-years-old.  It is rated by gallons of water pumped.  Newer 
trucks achieve the rating requirement compared to the older ones.  Mr. Shaw said refitting the 
older trucks with new equipment would cost about three-quarters the price of a new truck.  Mr. 
Shaw said a three-cent fire tax increase would fulfill departmental equipment needs at a 
minimum level necessary.     
 
Chairman McCook said the fire tax increase request would be considered during ongoing budget 
discussions.  Chairman McCook said the Commissioners might ask for additional information as 
it deliberates the request. 
 
The Commissioners thanked the fire departments and its 200-plus volunteers for their service to 
the community.  Commissioner Alford noted that volunteer fire departments, because they are 
volunteers, save tax dollars and put the safety of a community first. 
 
Report from the Sheriff 
 
Sheriff Shep Jones said there will be an impending SBI investigation of his office regarding 
deputies moonlighting for Gryphon Group.  The deputies who provided security for the company 
with the use of an older Sheriff’s vehicle were paid an additional $5 an hour by Gryphon Group. 
The additional $5 an hour, in turn, was paid by the deputies in cash to the Office of the Sheriff 
for fuel, vehicle maintenance and other activities of the office.  The arrangement with Gryphon 
Group began in August 2011.  Sheriff Jones said on the recommendation of the DA’s office, his 
office transitioned the $5 cash payments to money orders in August 2013.  Sheriff Jones said his 
office has maintained all records on the arrangement.  Chairman McCook asked the Sheriff to 
keep the Commissioners informed on the issue. 
 
Proposed move of Transportation to DSS 
 
DSS Director Robby Hall discussed the possibility of transitioning Transportation to DSS since 
much of the funding for the service comes through the agency.  Mr. Hall said the transition could 
save the County some money and could bring in additional reimbursement.  Mr. Hall said 
potential savings to the County over several years could be $60,000 to $80,000. 
 
County Manager Patterson said the proposal would be discussed further in the FY 2015 budget 
process. 
 
Mr. Hall also provided an update on NCFast.  Mr. Hall said the statewide backlog is clearing up. 
 
NCACC internship program 
 



Scotland County Board of Commissioners retreat 
February 26, 2014, SBIC, US401 bypass north, Laurinburg 
 

4 
 

Mr. Patterson said there is a program through NCACC where participating counties would hire 
MPA students from participating universities for a one-year internship at a cost of $35,000.    
 
Upcoming meetings 
 
The Commissioners agreed that 5:30 p.m. to 6 p.m. March 25 as the intergovernmental meeting 
to accept nominations to the Transportation Advisory Committee.  The Board also suggested that 
it could meet with its State legislative delegation from 6 p.m. to 7 p.m. the same evening. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Davis and duly seconded by Commissioner Alford to go into 
Closed Session in accordance with N.C. General Statute §143-318.11(a)(3) to consult an attorney. 
 
OPEN SESSION RESUMED 
 
Commissioner Gibson said he would like information on how many people would pay an increased fire 
tax but not benefit from it versus how many people would benefit from the higher fire tax.  
 
Commissioner Gibson asked if the governing board or department heads might consider adopting a street 
or highway.  The Board asked Commissioner Gibson to investigate the possibility of adopting a street.  

 
Motion was made by Commissioner Gibson and duly seconded by Commissioner Davis to adjourn.  
Vote:  Motion unanimously approved.  Meeting adjourned at 12:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Ann W. Kurtzman        Guy McCook 
Clerk to the Board        Chairman 
 
 


